
Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN AGENDA

Barbara Landry Meeting Room
2 Main Street

MONDAY, JANUARY 10, 2022 6:00 PM

  
1. Call to Order
  
2. Non-Public Session
 2.1. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee 
  
3. Pledge of Allegiance
  
4. Citizens' Forum
  
5. Budget Public Hearing
 5.1. Pursuant to New Hampshire RSA 32:5, I, the Amherst Board of 

Selectmen hereby announces to the citizens of Amherst the convening of 
a Public Hearing to take input on the proposed FY22 Town Operating 
Budget, bonds and notes, and proposed warrant articles. 

  
6. Scheduled Appointments

  
7. Administration
 7.1. Administrative updates 
  
8. Staff Reports
 8.1. Cruiser Purchase Approval 
  
9. Approvals
 9.1. Assessing 
 9.2. AP, Payroll and Minutes 
  
10. Action Items
  

Page 1 of 53



11. Old/New Business
  
12. Non-Public Session
 12.1. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a public employee 
  
 Adjournment
  
 Next Meeting: January 24, 2022

You are invited to a Zoom webinar.
 When: Jan 10, 2022 06:30 PM Eastern Time
 Topic: BOS 01/10/2022
 
 Please click the link below to join the webinar:
 https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86277835957
 
Or Telephone: (646) 558-8656   Webinar ID: 862 7783 5957

Page 2 of 53

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86277835957


Page 1 of 4

 
AMHERST TOWN WARRANT 

THE STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
MARCH 8, 2022

To the inhabitants of the Town of Amherst in the County of Hillsborough and the State of New Hampshire, 
qualified to vote in town affairs:

You are hereby notified that the Annual Meeting of Amherst will be held in accordance with NH RSA 
40:13. The first session, to transact all business other than voting, is on Wednesday, February 9, 2022 at 
7:00 PM at the Souhegan High School Auditorium. The second session, voting by official ballot at the 
polls, is on Tuesday, March 8, 2022 at the Souhegan High School from 6:00 AM to 8:00 PM.

ARTICLE 21:  To choose all necessary Town Officers for the ensuing terms as follows:

2 Selectmen for 3 Years
1 Town Moderator for 2 Years
1 Cemetery Trustee for 3 Years
3 Library Trustees for 3 Years
2 Planning Board Members for 3 Years
1 Trustee of the Trust Funds for 3 Years 
1 Supervisor of the Checklist for 6 Years
1 Zoning Board of Adjustment Member for 3 Years

ARTICLE 22:  Operating Budget
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including appropriations by 
special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set forth on the budget 
posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first session, for the purposes set forth herein, totaling 
$15,518,154.  Should this article be defeated the default budget shall be $14,928,440 which is the same as 
last year with certain adjustments required by previous action of the Town or by law; or the governing 
body may hold one special meeting in accordance with RSA 40:13 X and XVI to take up the issue of a 
revised operating budget only. This operating budget warrant article does not include appropriations 
contained in any other warrant article. (Tax Impact = $4.05) (Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 4-1-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of X-X-X.)

ARTICLE 23:   Contingency Fund
Shall the Town vote to establish a contingency fund for the current year, in accordance with NH RSA 
Section 31:98-a, for unanticipated expenses that may arise and further to raise and appropriate the sum of 
one hundred-twenty thousand dollars ($120,000) to go into the fund. Said sum shall come from the 
undesignated fund balance and no amount to be raised from taxation. Any appropriation left in the fund at 
the end of the year will lapse to the general fund.  (Tax Impact = $0.00) (Majority vote required) 

Page 3 of 53



Page 2 of 4

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of X-X-X)

ARTICLE 24:  Communications Center Capital Reserve Fund
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to be added 
to the Communications Center Capital Reserve Fund, previously established.  (Tax Impact = $0.01) 
(Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0.)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

ARTICLE 25: Assessing Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) to be added 
to the Assessing Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.01) (Majority 
vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of.)

ARTICLE 26:  Bridge Repair and Replacement Capital Reserve Fund
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two hundred thousand ($200,000) to be added to 
the Bridge Repair and Replacement Capital Reserve Fund, previously established.   (Tax Impact = $0.09) 
(Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of.)

ARTICLE 27:  Fire Rescue Vehicle and Equipment Purchase and Repair Capital Reserve Fund
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two hundred fifty-seven thousand dollars 
($257,000) to be added to the Fire Rescue Vehicle and Equipment Purchase and Repair Capital Reserve 
Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.11) (Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of.)

ARTICLE 28:  DPW Vehicles and Equipment Acquisition and Replacement CRF
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred and twenty thousand dollars 
($120,000) to be added to the DPW Vehicles and Equipment Acquisition and Replacement Capital Reserve 
Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.05) (Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 4-1-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

ARTICLE 29:  Amherst Multimodal Facilities CRF
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of seventy-five thousand dollars ($75,000) to be 
added to the Amherst Multimodal Facilities Capital Reserve Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = 
$0.03) (Majority vote required)

 (The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

Page 4 of 53



Page 3 of 4

ARTICLE 30:  Village Area Multimodal Road Design & Engineering
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ninety-eight thousand dollars ($98,000) for the 
purpose of design engineering for reconstruction and safety improvements for bicycles and pedestrians on 
streets in the village area that are scheduled for reconstruction by the Department of Public Works, and the 
development of application materials for state, federal, and private grant programs.

This shall be a special, non-lapsing warrant article that will not lapse for a period of five years. (Tax Impact 
= $0.04) (Majority vote required)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

ARTICLE 31:  Recreation Fields Acquisition and Construction CRF
Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) to be added to 
the Recreation Fields Acquisition and Construction Capital Reserve Fund, previously established.  (Tax 
Impact = $0.02) (Majority vote required)   

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

ARTICLE 32:  Elderly, Blind and Disabled Exemption
Shall the Town vote to modify the elderly, blind, and disabled exemptions from property
tax in the Town of Amherst, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers to be as follows:

For elderly persons:
           -65 years of age up to 74 years inclusive, an exemption of $ 104,120. (formerly $76,000);
           -75 years of age up to 79 years inclusive, an exemption of $ 156,180. (formerly $114,000);
           -80 years of age or older, an exemption of $ 206,870. (formerly $151,000); and

For blind persons of any age:
           -an exemption of $ 50,690. (formerly $37,000); and
For disabled persons of any age:
           -an exemption of $ 89,050. (formerly $65,000); and

For the elderly and the disabled exemptions only
-a net income of not more than $ 49,960. (formerly $41,760) for a single person, or if married, a 
combined net income of less than $ 67,640. (formerly $57,000); and
-own assets not in excess of $ 165,000. (formerly $150,000) excluding the value of the person’s 
residence in accordance with RSA 72:39-a.

To qualify for any of the above exemptions, a person must have been a New Hampshire resident
for at least three (3) years (5 years for the disabled person), own real estate individually or jointly,
or if the real estate is owned by such person’s spouse, they must have been married for at 
least five(5)years. (Estimated Tax Impact:  .03 Cents per Thousand)

(The Board of Selectmen supports this article by a vote of 5-0-0)
(The Ways and Means Committee supports this article by a vote of XXX.)

Page 5 of 53



Page 4 of 4

ARTICLE 33:  New Hampshire Resolution to Stop the Puppy Mill Pipeline
By petition of 25 or more eligible voters of the town of Amherst; to see if the town will go on record 
opposing the retail sale of dogs and cats in pet stores in the town. This resolution is necessary because the 
majority of dogs and cats sold in pet stores are sourced from large-scale, inhumane commercial breeding 
facilities commonly called “puppy mills.” The record of this vote shall be transmitted by written notice 
from the selectmen to the town’s state legislators and to the Governor of New Hampshire. (Tax Impact = 
$0.00)

Given under our hands and seal this XXth day of January 2022 

________________________
Peter Lyon, Chairman

_______________________
Danielle Pray, Clerk

______________________
John D’Angelo, Selectman

________________________
Dwight Brew, Vice Chairman

_______________________
Thomas Grella, Selectman

Page 6 of 53



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Administrative updates Department: Administration
Meeting Date: January 10, 2022 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
None

Page 7 of 53



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Cruiser Purchase Approval Department: Police Department
Meeting Date: January 10, 2022 Staff Contact: Mark Reams

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
The APD is seeking authorization to purchase one of its two yearly replacement 
cruisers from the Police Detail Revolving Fund.   The agency is budgeted for two 
replacement vehicles each year.  However, this year (FY22) the department was forced 
to forfeit one of those allotted vehicles in favor of replacing the 2010 Ford Expedition 
which was recently totaled in November after an inattentive driver crashed into the 
vehicle at a construction site (i.e., the recent Boston Post Road culvert replacement 
project).  The loss of this vehicle left the agency with the need to replace three police 
vehicles this year, while only being budgeted for two.
 
At the root of this vehicle shortage is the fact that the agency received no replacement 
vehicles in the spring of 2020 due to two factors.   First, production was unexpectedly 
halted on the 2020 Dodge Charger cruiser platform which left many agencies across 
the state without replacement Dodge Chargers.  In lieu of replacement police Charger 
sedans, the APD planned to instead replace its 2010 Ford Expedition in the spring of 
2020 with a Dodge Durango which was available at that time.  However, the 
subsequent town-wide Covid spending freeze left the agency without that replacement 
vehicle (i.e., replacing the vehicle at that time was not absolutely necessary and those 
funds were consequently returned at years end).
 
This expenditure request is being made pursuant to the provisions of the Police Detail 
Revolving Fund established by Town vote in 2006, which reads as follows:
 
Article 21:  (Establishment of Revolving Fund for Public Safety Services) To see if 
the Town will vote to establish a Public Safety Services Revolving Fund pursuant to 
RSA 31:95-h.  The money received from fees and charges for public safety services 
(e.g.: special events, highway construction, outside details et.al.) shall be allowed to 
accumulate from year to year, and shall not be considered to be part of the Town’s 
general fund unreserved fund balance. The Town Treasurer shall have custody of all 
monies in the fund, and shall pay out the same only upon order of the Board of 
Selectmen (no further town meeting approval is required).  These funds may only be 
expended for public safety purposes as stated in RSA 31:95-h, and no expenditure 
shall be made in such a way as to require the expenditure of other town funds which 
have not been appropriated for that purpose.  This is a Special Article in accordance 
with RSA 32.  
 
The current fund balance is $154,176.61.  It appears that funds have never been 

Page 8 of 53



expended from this account since its inception in 2006.  The monies from this fund are 
derived from additional fees charged to vendors for outside police details which require 
the use of a police cruiser.  The intent is that those fees be used to help offset costs 
associated with maintaining the department’s cruiser fleet.  Presently, the APD is 
seeking authorization to expend $39,731 from this fund to cover this unanticipated 
replacement vehicle purchase. The department will be seeking authorization at a later 
date (prior to the end of FY22) to expend additional funds from this account for related 
vehicle equipment (e.g., lights, sirens, etc.).  Once completed, the department will be 
able to return to its budgeted cruiser purchase plan for FY23 and beyond.
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
$39,731.00
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
N/A
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
Approve
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Move to award the cruiser purchase bid to Northwest Hills Automotive, LLC, in the 
amount of $39,731, and to approve the expenditure of funds in that amount and for that 
purpose from the Police Detail Revolving Fund.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:
Approve

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 20220105112541

Page 9 of 53



Page 10 of 53



Page 11 of 53



Page 12 of 53



Page 13 of 53



Page 14 of 53



Page 15 of 53



Page 16 of 53



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: Assessing Department: Assessing
Meeting Date: January 10, 2022 Staff Contact: Michele Boudreau

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Veteran Tax Credit

Item A. I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the 
applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2022 tax year.

Suggested Motion:
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit 
for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 008, Lot 053-017.

Item B. I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the 
applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2022 tax year.

Suggested Motion:
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit 
for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 017, Lot 021-000.

Item C. I have reviewed the attached Veteran Tax Credit Application provided and the 
applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:28 for the 2022 tax year.

Suggested Motion:
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Veteran Tax Credit 
for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 017, Lot 021-000.

Page 17 of 53



Item D. I have reviewed the attached Service Connected Total and Disabled Tax Credit 
Application provided and the applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit under RSA 72:35 for 
the 2022 tax year.

Suggested Motion:
The attached application has been reviewed by our Assessor and our Assessor 
recommends granting this credit. Therefore, I move to approve the Service Connected 
Total and Disabled Tax Credit for tax year 2022 in the amount of $4,000.00 for Map 
003, Lot 059-012.

Land Use Change Tax

Item E. Attached is a Land Use Change Tax release for Tax Map 004 Lot 154-000. The 
lot was purchased on 8/27/2021 causing this lot to no longer qualify for current use as it 
is less than 10 acres and not contiguous with other lots in current use under identical 
ownership. The Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $13,930 represents 10% of the 
full and true market value of $139,300.

Suggested Motion:
The attached Land Use Change Tax has been reviewed by our Assessor and our 
Assessor recommends approving. Therefore, I move to approve the Land Use Change 
Tax in the amount of $13,930 for Tax Map 004 Lot 154-000.

Item F. Attached is a Land Use Change Tax release for Tax Map 004 Lot 154-002. The 
lot was purchased on 8/27/2021 causing this lot to no longer qualify for current use as it 
is less than 10 acres and not contiguous with other lots in current use under identical 
ownership. The Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $14,960 represents 10% of the 
full and true market value of $149,600.

Suggested Motion:
The attached Land Use Change Tax has been reviewed by our Assessor and our 
Assessor recommends approving. Therefore, I move to approve the Land Use Change 
Tax in the amount of $14,960 for Tax Map 004 Lot 154-002.

Abatement Recommendations

Item G. During the town-wide revaluation some properties had their assessments 
reduced to the point that it resulted in an overcharge on the first issue tax bill. The 
primary reason for this abatement is to clear the books and have documentation for the 
records and for audit purposes. This would result in an abatement in the amount of 
$532.00.

Suggested Motion:
The attached abatement for overpayment has been reviewed by our Assessor and 
recommends to approve. Therefore, I move to approve the 2021 abatement in the 

Page 18 of 53



amount of $532.00 for Map 010 Lot 067-032.

Item H. During the town-wide revaluation some properties had their assessments 
reduced to the point that it resulted in an overcharge on the first issue tax bill. The 
primary reason for this abatement is to clear the books and have documentation for the 
records and for audit purposes. This would result in an abatement in the amount of 
$287.00.

Suggested Motion:
The attached abatement for overpayment has been reviewed by our assessor and 
recommends to approve. Therefore, I move to approve the 2021 abatement in the 
amount of $287.00 for Map 025 Lot 024-000.

Item I. During the town-wide revaluation some properties had their assessments 
reduced to the point that it resulted in an overcharge on the first issue tax bill. The 
primary reason for this abatement is to clear the books and have documentation for the 
records and for audit purposes. This would result in an abatement in the amount of 
$427.00.

Suggested Motion:
The attached abatement for overpayment has been reviewed by our Assessor and 
recommends to approve. Therefore, I move to approve the 2021 abatement in the 
amount of $427.00 for Map 007 Lot 017-084.

Department of Revenue Sales Ratio Study

Item J. I have completed a review of the information for the sales ratio survey and a 
filled-out copy has been provided to Michele for the Board of Selectmen to review. 
Please note that a certification form also needs to be signed by the Board of 
Selectmen, indicating that the data provided to the DRA is complete and accurate to 
the best of their knowledge. If during review any questions arise, please let me know.

A draft analysis of the sales data was performed through the State’s data entry 
program. Overall, the town’s assessment to sale median ratio is expected to be about 
95% for the 2021 tax year. The 309 valid sales indicate a COD of approximately 9.39 
with the PRD at 1.03. The above listed figures are expected to be similar (although not 
exact as different sales may be included/excluded) to the DRA’s analysis, which should 
be completed in the late winter to early spring of 2022. Once the attached form is 
signed the final sales data will be submitted to the Department of Revenue.

The above statistics indicate that the real estate market remains very strong. Due to the 
high demand and continued low supply of houses on the market, we have seen a sharp 
increase in sale prices continue following the town wide revaluation. The sales that 
occurred after the assessment period have slightly brought the equalization ratio down 
beyond the ratio calculated following the revaluation. The preliminary indications meet 
the current Department of Revenue Assessment Review Guidelines regarding 

Page 19 of 53



statistics.

Suggested Motion:
The Assessor has submitted the Department of Revenue Sales Ratio Survey Study and 
recommends to approve and sign. Therefore, I move to accept and sign, the 2021 
Department of Revenue Sales Ratio Survey Study

 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Item A Confidential
2. Item B Confidential
3. Item C Confidential
4. Item D Confidential
5. Item E Confidential
6. Item F Confidential
7. Item G Confidential
8. Item H Confidential
9. Item I Confidential
10. Item J

Page 20 of 53



Page 21 of 53



Page 22 of 53



Page 23 of 53



Page 24 of 53



Page 25 of 53



Page 26 of 53



Page 27 of 53



Page 28 of 53



Page 29 of 53



Page 30 of 53



Page 31 of 53



Page 32 of 53



Page 33 of 53



Page 34 of 53



Page 35 of 53



Page 36 of 53



Page 37 of 53



Page 38 of 53



Page 39 of 53



Town of Amherst, NH
BOARD OF SELECTMEN

STAFF REPORT

Title: AP, Payroll and Minutes Department: Finance Department
Meeting Date: January 10, 2022 Staff Contact: 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:
 
BUDGET IMPACT:
(Include general ledger account numbers)   
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:
 
DEPARTMENT HEAD RECOMMENDATION:
 
SUGGESTED MOTION:
Approvals:
 
    Payroll
      
       AP1~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of 
$230,194.53 dated December 30, 2021, subject to review and audit.
 
   Accounts Payable
 
    AP2 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$35,079.81 dated December 16, 2021, subject to review and audit. (NH DMV)
 
    AP3 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$311,217.61 dated December 21, 2021, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
 
   AP4 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$19,663.24 dated December 23, 2021, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)

  AP5 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$473,016.06 dated January 4, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Vendors)
   
  AP6 ~ I move to approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of 
$3,176,200.00 dated January 1, 2022, subject to review and audit. (Schools)

    Minutes

Page 40 of 53



     ~ I move to approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of December 20, 
2021.
 
TOWN ADMINISTRATOR RECOMMENDATION:

ATTACHMENTS:
1. 2021.12.20 BOS_DRAFT

Page 41 of 53



 
 
 
 
 

Town of Amherst, NH 
BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 

Barbara Landry Meeting Room 

2 Main Street 

Monday, December 20, 2021, 6:30PM 
 

1. Call to Order 1 

Chairman Peter Lyon called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 2 

 3 

Attendees: Chairman Peter Lyon (remote), Selectman Dwight Brew, Selectman John 4 

D’Angelo, Selectman Tom Grella, and Selectman Danielle Pray. 5 

 6 

Ways & Means Committee present: Mike Parisi, Diane Leyton (remote), Wendy Rannenberg, 7 

Bill Loscocco, and Jim Kuhnert. 8 

 9 

Also present: Town Administrator Dean Shankle and Recording Secretary Kristan Patenaude 10 

(remote). 11 

 12 

2. Pledge of Allegiance – led by Danielle Pray. 13 

 14 

3. Public Hearing 15 

3.1 RSA 31:95-b:II (a) Acceptance of unanticipated funds 16 

Chairman Lyon explained that this is regarding an anonymous donation being made to the 17 

Fire Rescue Association for $50,000. With these funds, the Association is planning purchase 18 

and donate a solar system to the Town, to be placed on the Fire Station. 19 

 20 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to enter 21 

into a public hearing, per RSA 31:95-b:II (a). 22 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 23 

 24 

There was no public input. 25 

 26 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to close 27 

the public hearing. 28 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 29 

 30 

Fire Chief, Matt Conley, explained that he addressed this item with the Historic District 31 

Commission last Thursday. The solar system may slightly be seen from a couple of public 32 

roads, but there will not be much of a public view. The Commission voted to support the 33 

proposal. He explained that, in speaking with the DPW and solar system company, if the 34 

panels need to be replaced, the solar company will remove them and properly dispose of them.  35 

 36 

In response to a question from Selectman Brew, Chairman Lyon stated that only one public 37 

hearing is required and the vote for this item can be taken during this meeting.  38 

Page 42 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 2 OF 12 

 

 39 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella that the 40 

Town accept, with gratitude, the donation of a solar array from the Amherst Fire Rescue 41 

Association. 42 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 43 

 44 

4.   Citizen’s Forum – none. 45 

 46 

5.    Scheduled Appointments  47 

5.1      Francis Coffey, Salt concern, Wilkins Road 48 

Mr. Coffey stated that he has addressed the Board with his concerns regarding the usage of 49 

sale to treat Town roads on a number of occasions. He explained that he collected 50 

approximately 100 lbs. of salt that was applied to the road near his house during the last 51 

storm. His well sits quite close to the edge of the road and any salt placed on the road will 52 

eventually end up in his well. He believes evidence supports the Town using less salt and 53 

more sand to treat the roads. He noted that no one on Wilkins Road will mind if the Town 54 

lightens up on the salt treatment it applies to that road. He has had to collect hundreds of 55 

pounds of salt from the road near his house and does not believe he should have to clean up 56 

after the Town. Mr. Coffey stated that he believes he could have a Private Nuisance Action 57 

filed against the Town but would prefer not to go to court over this issue. He asked the Board 58 

to modify the salt policy to not treat Wilkins Road with salt, but sand instead.  59 

 60 

Eric Slosek, Interim DPW Director, stated that the research used by the DPW is all from NH 61 

DES’ Green SnowPro Program. Sand and salt are both not great for the environment but are 62 

necessary to provide safe roads in the winter. Based on the NH DES Green SnowPro 63 

guidance, the Town has mostly eliminated the use of sand and reduced the amount of salt used 64 

on paved town roads. The DPW, since joining this program, has reduced its salt use by 26% 65 

versus prior years. Mr. Slosek explained that the event discussed by Mr. Coffey was due to an 66 

issue with an alternative truck being used. During the last storm, he checked on this road that 67 

was being treated using the regular truck, and this issue was not seen. 68 

 69 

Chairman Lyon asked that Mr. Slosek review the policy with the Town Administrator to make 70 

sure it is being followed closely. 71 

 72 

5.2      Health and Human Services Budget presentation 73 

Rick Katzenberg explained that there are 15 Health and Human Services agencies that service 74 

the Town. One new organization, the American Red Cross, has been added to this budget. The 75 

individual letters of request from each agency have been analyzed and requested budgets have 76 

been presented to the Board. 77 

 78 

Chairman Lyon noted that the American Red Cross has, in years past, staffed warming 79 

stations in Town when needed. 80 

 81 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to adopt 82 

the Health & Human Services Budget, as presented by Rick Katzenberg. 83 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 84 

 85 

Page 43 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 3 OF 12 

 

6.     Administration 86 

6.1 Administrative Updates 87 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that the Town is still looking for a Finance Director.  88 

 89 

 6.2 Impact Fees 90 

Town Administrator Shankle stated that the policy notes that the Board will review impact 91 

fees annually. He reviewed the impact fees with Bruce Mayberry, who originally helped the 92 

Board with them. The cost to update impact fees is approximately $600-$1,000.  93 

 94 

Selectman Brew noted that he believes the Board discussing the potential updating of impact 95 

fees is a part of the annual review. He believes that having the updated school impact fee 96 

number before the annual town vote would be useful.  97 

 98 

The Board was in consensus that having the impact fees reviewed at this time would be 99 

helpful. 100 

 101 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 102 

contract with Bruce Mayberry to update the impact fee schedule using the updated school 103 

information. 104 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 105 

 106 

 6.3 National Opioid Settlement 107 

Town Administrator Shankle explained that the NH Attorney General's Office would like the 108 

Town of Amherst to participate in their settlement with certain opioid producers. The Town’s 109 

Attorney, Chris Drescher, recommended  that the Town opt into this suit.  110 

 111 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo that the 112 

Town of Amherst agrees to participate in the State of New Hampshire's National Opioid 113 

Settlement, as outlined in the attached document, and authorize Town attorney, Chris 114 

Drescher, to act on our behalf in this matter. 115 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 116 

 117 

 6.4 Review of budget and warrants in preparation for the budget public 118 

Hearing 119 

Chairman Lyon explained that the public hearing is scheduled for January 10, 2022.  120 

 121 

Chairman Lyon noted that the default number in Warrant Article 22, up to this point, has been 122 

$14,877,676. This number was recently adjusted to $14,928,440.  123 

 124 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 22 into the record: 125 

ARTICLE 22: Operating Budget 126 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including 127 

appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the 128 

amounts set forth on the budget posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the first 129 

session, for the purposes set forth herein, totaling $15,518,154. Should this article be defeated 130 

the default budget shall be $14,928,440 which is the same as last year with certain 131 

Page 44 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 4 OF 12 

 

adjustments required by previous action of the Town or by law; or the governing body may 132 

hold one special meeting in accordance with RSA 40:13 X and XVI to take up the issue of a 133 

revised operating budget only. This operating budget warrant article does not include 134 

appropriations contained in any other warrant article. (Tax Impact = $6.65) (Majority vote 135 

required)  136 

 137 

Selectman Brew stated that $4.29 would be the municipal tax per thousand, if the budget and 138 

all warrant articles pass, assuming $500,000 is used to offset taxes. He believes the tax bill 139 

most recently had this amount at $3.91. 140 

 141 

Chairman Lyon stated that, in FY2021 the Board voted to return $750,000 to offset taxes 142 

using the Unassigned Fund Balance, and $200,000 from this fund to complete the Police 143 

Station Renovation. The year before that, the Board voted to use $940,000 to reduce property 144 

taxes. For the current budget, $500,000 is being proposed to be returned to reduce property 145 

taxes. He explained that the budget proposed an increase of $183 in taxes over the previous 146 

year on a typical home in Town, or an 8.8% increase.  147 

 148 

Selectman Brew explained that the Board’s policy has been to return half of the amount over 149 

the 10% set aside in the Unassigned Fund Balance. In past years, the Board has successfully 150 

been able to return approximately $940,000-950,000 and not jeopardize the 10% in the 151 

Unassigned Fund Balance. He suggested that the Board agree to simply return $950,000 to the 152 

taxpayers each year for the next couple of years, and review what that does to the 10% target 153 

for the Unassigned Fund Balance. He also suggested that the Board wait and review the policy 154 

in the fall. An 8.8% municipal tax increase is still a large number. Increasing the amount to be 155 

returned from $500,000 to $950,000, will lower the increase in taxes this year to an amount 156 

less than $100 or approximately 4.3% from last year.  157 

 158 

Selectman D’Angelo noted his disappointment that this discussion on the Unassigned Fund 159 

Balance is taking place without being listed on the budget and thus notified to the public. He 160 

is not prepared to support this proposal at this time.  161 

 162 

Chairman Lyon stated that the decision on the amount does not need to be made tonight. This 163 

was included as part of the budget discussion. 164 

 165 

Selectman Pray stated that she agrees with the proposal to move this suggestion forward for 166 

discussion. 167 

 168 

Selectman Brew explained that the discussion on this topic is part of Warrant Article 22, and 169 

that the discussion must be had to determine the tax impact to be included in the Warrant 170 

Article.  171 

 172 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to amend the 173 

tax impact listed Warrant Article 22 from $6.65 to $4.05. 174 

Voting: 4-1-0; motion carried, (J. D’A. opposed). 175 

 176 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 177 

Warrant Article 22. 178 

Page 45 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 5 OF 12 

 

Voting: 4-1-0; motion carried, (J. D’A. opposed). 179 

 180 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 23: 181 

ARTICLE 23: Contingency Fund 182 

Shall the Town vote to establish a contingency fund for the current year, in accordance with 183 

NH RSA Section 31:98-a, for unanticipated expenses that may arise and further to raise and 184 

appropriate the sum of one hundred-twenty thousand dollars ($120,000) to go into the fund. 185 

Said sum shall come from the undesignated fund balance and no amount to be raised from 186 

taxation. Any appropriation left in the fund at the end of the year will lapse to the general 187 

fund. (Tax Impact = $0.00) (Majority vote required). 188 

 189 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 190 

Warrant Article 23. 191 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 192 

 193 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 24: 194 

ARTICLE 24: Communications Center Capital Reserve Fund 195 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars 196 

($25,000) to be added to the Communications Center Capital Reserve Fund, previously 197 

established. (Tax Impact = $0.01) (Majority vote required) 198 

 199 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Grella and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to support 200 

Warrant Article 24. 201 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 202 

 203 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 25: 204 

ARTICLE 25: Assessing Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund 205 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of twenty-five thousand dollars 206 

($25,000) to be added to the Assessing Revaluation Capital Reserve Fund, previously 207 

established. (Tax Impact = $0.01) (Majority vote required) 208 

 209 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 210 

Warrant Article 25. 211 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 212 

 213 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 26: 214 

ARTICLE 26: Bridge Repair and Replacement Capital Reserve Fund 215 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two hundred thousand ($200,000) to 216 

be added to the Bridge Repair and Replacement Capital Reserve Fund, previously 217 

established. (Tax Impact = $0.09) (Majority vote required) 218 

 219 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 220 

Warrant Article 26. 221 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 222 

 223 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 27: 224 

Page 46 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 6 OF 12 

 

ARTICLE 27: Fire Rescue Vehicle and Equipment Purchase and Repair Capital Reserve 225 

Fund Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of two hundred fifty-seven 226 

thousand dollars ($257,000) to be added to the Fire Rescue Vehicle and Equipment Purchase 227 

and Repair Capital Reserve Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.11) (Majority 228 

vote required) 229 

 230 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 231 

Warrant Article 27. 232 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 233 

 234 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 28: 235 

ARTICLE 28: DPW Vehicles and Equipment Acquisition and Replacement CRF 236 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of one hundred and twenty thousand 237 

dollars ($120,000) to be added to the DPW Vehicles and Equipment Acquisition and 238 

Replacement Capital Reserve Fund, previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.05) (Majority 239 

vote required) 240 

 241 

Selectman D’Angelo stated that the Board has not spent any time this year discussing this 242 

Warrant Article. He does not support this Article, as it looks to move budget line items into 243 

recurring Warrant Articles. He believes this is misleading to voters who believes costs of 244 

running the Town should be in the budget. 245 

 246 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 247 

Warrant Article 28. 248 

Voting: 4-1-0; motion carried. (J. D’A. opposed). 249 

 250 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 29: 251 

ARTICLE 29: Amherst Multimodal Facilities CRF 252 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of seventy-five thousand dollars 253 

($75,000) to be added to the Amherst Multimodal Facilities Capital Reserve Fund, previously 254 

established. (Tax Impact = $0.03) (Majority vote required) 255 

 256 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 257 

Warrant Article 29. 258 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 259 

 260 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 30: 261 

ARTICLE 30: Amherst Multimodal Facilities CRF 262 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ninety-eight thousand dollars 263 

($98,000) to be added to the Amherst Multimodal Facilities Capital Reserve Fund, previously 264 

established. (Tax Impact = $0.04) (Majority vote required) 265 

 266 

Chairman Lyon explained that some Ways & Means members would like for these funds to be 267 

inserted into the operating budget, or at least word the Warrant Article to expend these funds 268 

for the design of the Village Multimodal Project instead of inserting them into the Multimodal 269 

Facilities CRF. He suggested that this Article be reworded to make clear what the funds are to 270 

be used for and to not insert them into the CRF. He suggested the following wording: 271 

Page 47 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 7 OF 12 

 

ARTICLE 30: Village Area Multimodal Road Design & Engineering 272 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of ninety-eight thousand dollars 273 

($98,000) for the purpose of design engineering for reconstruction for safety improvements 274 

for bicycles and pedestrians on streets in the Village area that are scheduled for 275 

reconstruction by the Department of Public Works, and the development of application 276 

materials for state, federal, and private grant programs. This shall be a special, non-lapsing 277 

Warrant Article, that will not lapse for a period of five years. (Tax Impact = $0.04) (Majority 278 

vote required) 279 

 280 

In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Chris Buchanan, Chair of the Bicycle & 281 

Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC), explained any of these grant programs would 282 

require a 20% local match. The intention is to use already scheduled road construction funds, 283 

approximately $500,000 in 2025, to leverage approximately $2.5M in grant funding for the 284 

project. 285 

 286 

Chris Buchanan explained that the funds proposed in this Warrant Article would be used to 287 

explore design options for the grant funding to reconstruct these streets in a safer way.  288 

 289 

Diane Leyton, Ways & Means, stated that she would like this Article to include wording that 290 

the grant dovetails with the road improvements that are in the foreseeable future. Chairman 291 

Lyon explained that several of the Village roads are scheduled for reconstruction. The BPAC 292 

is hoping to combine the money for road reconstruction and the grant funding to reconstruct 293 

them in a more appropriate capacity for multimodal transportation.  294 

 295 

Chris Buchanan explained that the particular treatment being sought for these roads is 296 

different than a separate facility, and so the design engineering would be incorporated into the 297 

design of the road reconstruction itself. This engineering study for the local streets would look 298 

to see how they can be modified for all types of transportation, including vehicles. 299 

 300 

Chairman Lyon noted that road reconstruction could move forward, as scheduled, and the 301 

roads would be rebuilt essentially as-is. This proposal is to make these roads safer and better 302 

for townspeople. 303 

 304 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to amend 305 

Warrant Article 30 to the language proposed by Chairman Lyon. 306 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 307 

 308 

Town Administrator Shankle asked about a possible additional Warrant Article to complete 309 

work on the eastern portion of the Amherst Street sidepath. This portion, running from Boston 310 

Post Road to Courthouse Road, would cost approximately $150,000 to finish. 311 

 312 

Chris Buchanan stated that he would prefer not to pursue this additional construction at this 313 

time. There are engineering complexities in this area that will take additional time. That 314 

portion of the roadway is also within the ARPA grant that will be filed along with the town of 315 

Milford, which could potentially fund the entire section of sidepath. Finally, a third Article for 316 

the BPAC would be too much at one time. He proposed that this delayed for at least one year. 317 

 318 

Page 48 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 8 OF 12 

 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 31: 319 

ARTICLE 31: Recreation Fields Acquisition and Construction CRF 320 

Shall the Town vote to raise and appropriate the sum of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000) to 321 

be added to the Recreation Fields Acquisition and Construction Capital Reserve Fund, 322 

previously established. (Tax Impact = $0.02) (Majority vote required) 323 

 324 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 325 

Warrant Article 31. 326 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 327 

 328 

Selectman Brew read Warrant Article 32: 329 

ARTICLE 32: Elderly, Blind and Disabled Exemption 330 

Shall the Town vote to modify the elderly, blind, and disabled exemptions from property tax  331 

in the Town of Amherst, based on assessed value, for qualified taxpayers to be as follows: 332 

For elderly persons: 333 

-65 years of age up to 74 years inclusive, an exemption of $ 104,120. (formerly 334 

$76,000). 335 

-75 years of age up to 79 years inclusive, an exemption of $ 156,180. (formerly 336 

$114,000). 337 

-80 years of age or older, an exemption of $ 206,870. (formerly $151,000); and 338 

 339 

For blind persons of any age: 340 

-an exemption of $ 50,690. (formerly $37,000); and 341 

For disabled persons of any age: 342 

-an exemption of $ 89,050. (formerly $65,000); and 343 

 344 

For the elderly and the disabled exemptions only 345 

-a net income of not more than $ 49,960. (formerly $41,760) for a single person, or if 346 

married, a combined net income of less than $ 67,640. (formerly $57,000); and 347 

-own assets not in excess of $ 165,000. (formerly $150,000) excluding the value of the 348 

person’s residence in accordance with RSA 72:39-a. 349 

 350 

To qualify for any of the above exemptions, a person must have been a New Hampshire 351 

resident for at least three (3) years (5 years for the disabled person), own real estate 352 

individually or jointly, or if the real estate is owned by such person’s spouse, they must have 353 

been married for at least five(5)years. (Estimated Tax Impact: .03 Cents per Thousand) 354 

 355 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to support 356 

Warrant Article 32, with proposed amendments. 357 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 358 

 359 

7.    Staff Reports 360 

 7.1 Fleet Vehicle Purchase 361 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to award the 362 

police vehicle purchase bid to Northwest Hills Chrysler/Dodge/Jeep/Ram in the amount of 363 

$77,280. 364 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 365 

Page 49 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 9 OF 12 

 

 366 

 7.2 Police Motorcycle Lease 367 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella, subject to 368 

Town Counsel review and approval, to approve the four-year lease contract for the 369 

replacement of the Police Department motorcycle, and to authorize the Town Administrator to 370 

execute the contract on behalf of the Town. 371 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 372 

 373 

 7.3 Boston Post Road Culvert Update 374 

Eric Slosek noted that Boston Post Road is now open as two new culverts were installed. He 375 

explained that Hoyle Tanner will now be submitting the report and plans for this project to the 376 

State. The State could then either ask the Town to proceed with a formal permit process or 377 

choose to waive this requirement based on the emergency need of the project. The cost of the 378 

project should be approximately $296,000, for construction. The engineering portion will be 379 

less than what it would have been to replace the culvert later on.  380 

 381 

In response to a question from Selectman Grella, Mr. Slosek explained that the State will not 382 

inspect this culvert, but the Town will continue to do so. The lifespan for the pipes is 75-100 383 

years. 384 

 385 

Selectman Brew asked that Mr. Slosek look into the Department of Environmental Services 386 

payment before finalizing payment for the project, as he is not sure the DES payment is 387 

needed because the culvert was built in the same footprint. 388 

 389 

 7.4 DPW New Hire 390 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to 391 

transfer Daniel Callahan from a DPW winter-on call employee grade S11 step5 ($19.13/ 392 

hour), to a DPW light equipment operator position grade 7 step 2 ($21.70/hour), effective 393 

December 21, 2021. This position is full-time with benefits. 394 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 395 

 396 

 7.5 Solar System for AFR 397 

This was previously addressed earlier in the meeting. 398 

 399 

 7.6 Bid Award for Annual Town Report 400 

In response to a question from Chairman Lyon, Jennifer Stover, Executive Assistant stated 401 

that the Town ordered 750 copies of the Town Report last year and she believes that to be a 402 

good amount. 403 

 404 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Brew to award 405 

the Annual Town Report printing to Smith & Town as the lowest qualified bidder for the costs 406 

quoted of 750 copies for $1981, including shipping costs. 407 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 408 

 409 

8. Approvals 410 

 8.1  Assessing 411 

Page 50 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 10 OF 12 

 

All Service Veteran Tax Credit  412 

A. The assessor reviewed the application, and the applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit 413 

under RSA 72:28-b for the 2022 tax year. 414 

 415 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 416 

the All-Service Veterans' Tax Credit for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 005, Lot 417 

082-002. 418 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 419 

 420 

B. The assessor reviewed the application, and the applicant qualifies for the Tax Credit 421 

under RSA 72:28-b for the 2022 tax year. 422 

 423 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 424 

the All-Service Veterans’ Tax Credit for tax year 2022 in the amount of $500 for Map 002, 425 

Lot 166-016. 426 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 427 

 428 

Land Use Change Tax 429 

C. The lot was purchased on 12/2/2021 and is less than 10 acres. The Land Use 430 

Change Tax in the amount of $25,000 represents 10% of the full and true market value 431 

of $250,000. 432 

 433 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 434 

the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $25,000 for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-024. 435 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 436 

 437 

D. The lot was purchased on 12/2/2021 and is less than 10 acres. The Land Use 438 

Change Tax in the amount of $25,000 represents 10% of the full and true market value 439 

of $250,000. 440 

 441 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 442 

the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $25,000 for Tax Map 005 Lot 059-034. 443 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 444 

 445 

E. The parcel was purchased on 12/01/2021 and no longer qualifies for current use as 446 

it is less than 10 acres. The Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $5,200 represents 447 

10% of the full and true market value of $52,000. The LUCT is for rear or excess land 448 

only and the house lot which hold most of the land value was not in current use as the 449 

parcel was in current use with 003-28-001. 450 

 451 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 452 

the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $5,200 for Tax Map 003 Lot 029-000. 453 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 454 

 455 

F. The abutting lot was purchased on 12/01/2021 causing this lot to no longer qualify 456 

for current use as it is less than 10 acres. The Land Use Change Tax in the amount of 457 

$15,090 represents 10% of the full and true market value of $150,900. 458 

Page 51 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 11 OF 12 

 

 459 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 460 

the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $15,090 for Tax Map 003 Lot 028-001. 461 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 462 

 463 

G. The lot was sold and is less than 10 acres and a Land Use Change Tax should be 464 

issued. The Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $17,500 represents 10% of the full 465 

and true market value of $175,000. 466 

 467 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Brew and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to approve 468 

the Land Use Change Tax in the amount of $17,500.00 for Tax Map 004 Lot 147-010, 13 469 

Victoria Ridge Road. 470 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 471 

 472 

 8.2 AP, Payroll, Minutes 473 

Payroll 474 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 475 

approve one (1) FY21 Payroll Manifest in the amount of $225,421.50 dated December 16, 476 

2021, subject to review and audit. 477 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 478 

 479 

Accounts Payable 480 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Pray to 481 

approve one (1) FY21 Accounts Payable Manifest in the amount of $2,349,135.71 dated 482 

December 7, 2021, subject to review and audit. (Vendors) 483 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 484 

 485 

A MOTION was made by Selectman Pray and SECONDED by Selectman D’Angelo to 486 

approve the Board of Selectmen meeting minutes of December 6, 2021, as written. 487 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 488 

 489 

9. Action Items 490 

The Board reviewed its action items. 491 

 492 

10. Old/New Business 493 

Selectman D’Angelo stated that the Amherst School Board is meeting a week from tonight. 494 

 495 

A MOTION was made by Selectman D’Angelo and SECONDED by Selectman Grella to 496 

adjourn the meeting at 8:42pm. 497 

Voting: 5-0-0; motion carried unanimously. 498 

 499 

NEXT MEETING: Monday, January 10, 2022 500 

 501 

 502 

    503 

_________________________       __________________ 504 

Page 52 of 53



 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES 2021.12.20 

 PAGE 12 OF 12 

 

Selectman Danielle Pray Date 505 

Page 53 of 53


	1. Call to Order
	2. Non-Public Session
	1. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a p

	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Citizens' Forum
	5. Budget Public Hearing
	1. Pursuant to New Hampshire RSA 32:5, I, the Amherst
	2023 WARRANT DRAFT,  #4


	6. Scheduled Appointments
	7. Administration
	1. Administrative updates
	Staff Report


	8. Staff Reports
	1. Cruiser Purchase Approval
	Staff Report
	20220105112541


	9. Approvals
	1. Assessing
	Staff Report
	Item J

	2. AP, Payroll and Minutes
	Staff Report
	2021.12.20 BOS_DRAFT


	10. Action Items
	11. Old/New Business
	12. Non-Public Session
	1. RSA 91-A:3, II (b) The hiring of any person as a p

	 Adjournment
	 Next Meeting:  January 24, 2022

